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TERRY R. FANT. PA

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
309 WEST MAIN STREET
UNION, SOUTH CAROLINA 29379

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Town Council
Town of Blacksburg, SC

Report on the Financial Statements

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Blacksburg, SC,
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that | plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, | express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinions,

Opinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Blacksburg, SC, as of March 31, 2019, and
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and the pension schedules, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. | have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to my inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge | obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. |
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Blacksburg, SC's basic financial statements. The combining and individual
nonmaijor fund financial statements are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of fines and assessments is presented for
the purpose of additional analysis as required by the State Treasurer's Office of SC and is also not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of fines and
assessments are the responsibility of management and are derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, inctuding comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedule of fines and assessments are fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued my report dated June 18, 2019,
on my consideration of the Town of Blacksburg, SC’s internal control over financial reporting and on my
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of my festing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Town of Blacksburg, SC’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Town of Blacksburg, SC's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

3«3 A, Do

Terry R. Fant, CPA, PA
June 18, 2019
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TOWN OF BLACKSBURG
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
MARCH 31, 2019

This discussion and analysis of the Town of Blacksburg's financial performance provides an
overview of the Town's financial activities for the year ended March 31, 2019. Please read it
in conjunction with the Town'’s financial statements, which begin on page 10.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

e The Town of Blacksburg's assets exceeded liabilities by $9,124,155 at the close of the
most recent fiscal year.

+ Governmental activities decreased the Town of Blacksburg's net position by
$(150,700) to a year-end balance of $528,620.

e Business-type activities increased the Town of Blacksburg’s net position by $1,948 to
a year-end balance of $8,595,535.

+ As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s general fund reported an ending
fund balance of $367,629, a decrease of $(151,364).

e The Town reported a prior period adjustment to the government-wide financial
statements and the proprietary fund financial statements to adjust net OPEB
liability and net position of prior years to implement GASB Statement No. 75. The
accounting standard has no impact on the Town's governmental fund financial
statements. Net position reported in the Town's financial statements was
decreased to reflect the cumulative change in accounting principle related to the
adoption of the Statement as shown below:

Increase in net position - governmental activities $10,030
Decrease in net position - business-type activities/proprietary funds $23,259

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

This annual report contains a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Activities (on pages 10-11) provide information about the activities of
the Town as a whole and present an overall, long-term view of the Town’s finances. Fund
financial statements start on page 12. These statements show how governmental activities
were financed in the short-term, as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial
statements also provide detailed information about the Town’s governmental activities. Notes
to the financial statements are included to provide further information about certain sections
of the statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities:

These statements are designed to provide readers with an overall view of the Town'’s financial
condition in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These statements are presented
on the accrual basis, which means all of the year's revenues and expenses are taken into
account regardless of when cash is paid or received. The Statement of Net position presents
information on all of the Town'’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the Town's financial health is improving or deteriorating. The
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Statement of Activities presents the change in net position over the last fiscal year. These
statements divide the Town into two kinds of activities.

Governmental activities: These activities include most of the Town's fundamental services,
such as police, fire, public works, street and park maintenance, and general administration.
Most of these activities are financed with property taxes, license and franchise fees, and state
and federal grants.

Business-type activities: These are activities that are operated similar to a private enterprise.
Customers are charged fees to cover most or all of the activity's operating costs. The Town's
water and sewer systems are reported here.

The government wide statements can be found on pages 10-11.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of Blacksburg, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

These statements provide information on the individual funds of the Town. The Town has
four fund types; a General fund, a Proprietary fund, several Specia! Revenue funds and a
Fiduciary fund.

The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Town's financial
resources and its basic services. The relationships and differences between governmental
activities (reported in the government wide statements) and governmental funds are
explained in reconciliations following the governmental statements. The governmental fund
statements can be found on pages 12-18.

The General fund is where the basic services of the Town are accounted for. This fund is a
governmental fund, and uses the modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash
and all other financial assets that can be readily converted into cash.

The Special Revenue funds are governmental funds used to account for proceeds and
expenditures of specific revenue sources according to legal restrictions.

Fiduciary funds include agency funds that hold resources for outside parties.

The Water and Sewer fund is a proprietary fund, and uses the accrual basis of accounting,
the same method used in the government-wide statements. However, the proprietary fund
statements provide a greater level of detail and more information than the government-wide
statements. In addition, supplemental comparative statements are included following the
notes to the financial statements. The proprietary fund statements can be found on pages
16-18.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 19-49.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain
required supplemental information. The Town presents required supplemental information
related to its participation in the cost-sharing multiple-employer State of SC pension plan and
their other postemployment benefit plan.

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Supplemental information is presented immediately following the required supplemental
information which includes individual statement, combining statements, schedules and
reports as listed in the table of comments.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the Town of Blacksburg, assets exceeded liabilities by
$9,124,155 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. By far the largest portion of the Town's
net position (102 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, building, machinery,
and equipment less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding).
The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending. Although the Town’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

Unrestricted net position decreased by $(212,304) in the governmental-type activities.
Unrestricted net position decreased by $(38,593) in the business-type activities.

The following table presents a summary of the Town'’s net position.

Net Position
Governmental-
Type Activities Business-type Activities
2019 2018 2019 2018
Current and other assets $ 801,809 $1,014,154 $1.510,196 $1,508,012
Capital assets 1,552,383 _ 1,540,786 8223072 8,122,927
Total Assets 2,354,192 _2 554,980 9733268 9,630,939
Deferred outflows of resources 269,498 280,274 152,894 151,916
Long-term debt cutstanding 1,843,066 1,826,717 1,206,508 1,043,033
Other liabilities 218,950 308,129 75,907 104,202
Total Liabilities 2062016 _2.,134.846 1,282,415 1,147,235
Deferred inflows of resources 33,054 31,118 8212 . 18774
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 1,387,898 1,345,466 8,118,144 8,100,862
Restricted 153,612 124,410 0 0
Unrestricted {1.012.890) _ (800,5886) 477,391 515,984
Total Net Position $ 528620 §.669.290 —$8,505,535 $8.616.846
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the Town of Blacksburg’s net
position by $(150,700). Key elements of this increase are as follows:

Revenues increased $134,863 due to reimbursement of administrative overhead
expenses form the water and sewer fund.

Police fines decreased 53%.

Rental fees were increased substantially during the year,

School District reimbursement increased due to the addition of more officers.
Fire department expenditures increased 65%.

The police department spent $34,440 on a video system in the current year when grant
funds were received in the prior year.

The police department purchased two drug dogs from the narcotics fund.

The police department purchased a new police car and replaced the engine in
another vehicle.

The administrative department purchased new Christmas displays.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the Town of Blacksburg's net
position by $1,948. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

The Town received $260,942 from grants for capital improvements.
Utility revenues increased by $166,404 due mainly to an increase in tap fees.
Operating costs increased by $231,452 due mainly to increased administrative fees.

Overall, the Town saw a decrease in net position in the amount of $(148,752).

Changes In Net Position

Governmental-
Type Activities Business-type Activities
2019 2018 2019 2018
Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for services $ 92,027 $§ 148,460 $ 1,777,062 $1,610,658

Operating grants 110,991 87,467

Capital grants/donations 39,765 260,942 255,926
General Revenues:

Taxes 1,574,298 1,374,187

Other general revenues 79.368 73,145 9,119 3,351

Total Revenues 1,856,684 _ 1,723,024 2047123 1,869,935
Program Expenses:

General Government (433,348) (498,266)

Police Department (1,057,614) (1,025,050)

Fire Department (101,650) (61,650)

Streets Depariment (395,493) (420,929)

Cemetety Department (14,050) (22,988)

Interest on long term debt (5,228) (4,836)

Water and Sewer (2,045 175)_ (1,810.219)
Total Expenses {2.007,384) (2033,719) (2.045175) _ (1.810.219)
Increase (Decrease)

In Net Position {150,700)  (310,695) 1,948 59,716
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Beginning Net Position 669,290 979,985 8,616,846 8,557,130
Prior Period GASB 75 Adjustment _ 10,030 0 {23.259) 0
Ending Net Position $_0528620 § 660200 § 8595536 $8.616.846

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS:

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the Town'’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balance of $521,241, a decrease of $(122,162) in comparison with the prior year.
As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the Town’s general fund decreased by $(122,162) during the current fiscal
year. Key factors in this decrease follows:

s Revenues increased $134,863 due to reimbursement of administrative overhead

expenses form the water and sewer fund.

Police fines decreased 53%.

Rental fees were increased substantially during the year,

School District reimbursement increased due to the addition of more officers.

Fire department expenditures increased 65%.

The police department spent $34,440 on a video system in the current year when grant

funds were received in the prior year.

¢ The police department purchased a new police car and replaced the engine in another
vehicle.

¢ The administrative department purchased new Christmas displays.

Proprietary funds. The Town of Blacksburg's proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the combined utility at the end of the year amounted to $477,391.
The total decrease in unrestricted net position from operations was $38,593. Other factors
concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed above in the discussion of
the Town'’s business-type activities.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS:
The original budget was amended mainly to reimburse the general fund for administrative

expenses that were shared costs between the general fund and the water and sewer fund
along with a decrease in police fines.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

The Town continued to extend and upgrade its water and sewer systems. Most of this activity
was financed by contributions and grants. Upgrades and extensions are planned for the next
fiscal year.

Capital assets

The Town’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
March 31, 2019, amounted to $9,775,455 (net of accumulated depreciation). The increase in
investment in capital assets for the current year includes a vehicles, water and sewer system
improvements and equipment. The total increase in the Town's capital assets for the current
fiscal year was $699,903 before depreciation.

A summary of changes in governmental type activities capital assets follows:

Balance Balance

04-01-18 Additions  Deletions 03-31-19
Governmental type activities: $3,852,971 $ 124832 % $3,977,803
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (2,312,185} (113,236} (2.425.421)
Net Governmental Activities  $1,540,786 $1,552,382

A summary of business type activities capital assets follows:

Balance Balance

04-01-18 Additions Deletions 03-31-19
Business type activities: $16,995,986 $ 575,071 $ $17,571,057
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (8,873.059) (474 925) (9.347.984)
Net Business Activities $8,122,927 $ 8223073

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in note IV.C. of the notes to
the financial statements.

Long-term debt

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue,
without a referendum, to 8 percent of its total assessed valuation.

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for notes, bonds and leases
payable for the year ended March 31, 2019;

Balance Balance
04-01-18 Issued Retired 03-31-19
Total Governmental Activities $ 195,320 $ 24,1386 $ 54,971 $ 164,485
Total Business Type Activities 22,065 109,981 27.118 104,928
Totals $ 217385  $134.117 $ 82,089 $260,413
8
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Additional information on the Town's long-term debt can be found in note IV.D. of the notes to
the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES:

The unemployment rate for the Cherokee County was 3.4% at year-end compared to 3.5% a
year ago. In comparison, the state’s unemployment rate was 3.2% and the national rate was
3.8%. Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.

Tax millage for the 2018 tax book was 175.8 mills. The millage rate for the 2019 tax book will
be set in September 2019.

Debris disposal fees will remain at the $4 per residence rate for the 2019-20 fiscal year.
Business license fees were increase for the 2019-20 fiscal year.
Water and sewer rates were not increased for the 2019-20 fiscal year.

These factors, and others, were considered in the preparation of the Town’s budget for the
2019-20 fiscal year.

CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT:

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors
and creditors with a general overview of the Town's finances and to show the Town's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional information, contact management at 105 South Shelby Street, Blacksburg, S.C.
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Town of Blacksburg, South Carolina
Statement of Net Position
March 31, 2019

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 486,758 $ 1,201,476 $ 1,688,234
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 243,343 206,699 450,042
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 71,708 102,021 173,729
Capital assets not being depreciated
l.and and easements 244 355 59,062 303,417
Capital assets being depreciated - net of
accumulated depreciation 1,308,028 8,164,010 9,472,038
Total assets 2,354,192 9,733,268 12,087,460
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related deferred outflows 269,498 152,894 422 392
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 30,776 85,673 116,449
Customer deposits - 47,695 47,695
Other accrued expenses 115,284 15,429 130,713
Due to/from other funds 72,890 (72,890) -
Non-current accrued compensated absences and OPEB 273,606 197,789 471,395
Non-current net pension liability 1,404,975 903,791 2,308,766
Other noncuirent liabilities:
Notes and capital leases due within one year 56,322 40,314 96,636
Notes and Capital leases due in more than one year 108,163 64,614 172,777
Total liabilities 2,062,016 1,282,415 3,344 431
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension relatad deferred inflows 33,054 8,212 41,266
NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets 1,387,898 8,118,144 9,506,042
Restricted for:
Victims assistance 14,563 - 14,563
Law enforcement 13,171 - 13,171
Tourism 114,457 - 114,457
Museum maintenance 11,421 - 11,421
Unrestricted (1,012,850) 477,391 (535,499)
Total net Position $ 528620 $ 8,695,635 § 9,124,155

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

10
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Town of Blacksburg, South Carolina
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
March 31, 2019

Nonmajor Total
General Hospitality Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 339,096 $ 108,507 $ 39,1585 $ 486,758
Receivables - taxes (net of allow. for uncollectibles) 61,618 ? i 61,618
Receivables - disposal fees {net of allowances) 4,084 " - 4,084
Receivables - other (net of allow. for uncollectibles) 177,641 - - 177.641
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 71,708 . - 71,708
Total assets $ 654,147 $ 108,507 $ 39,155 $ 801,809
LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 30776 - $ - $ 30,776
Other accrued expense 115,284 - - 115,284
Due to/{from) other funds 78,840 (5,950) - 72,890
Total liabilities 224,900 (5,950) - 218,950
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable property taxes 61,618 - - 61,618
FUND BALANCES
Restricted - for victims assistance expenditures - . 14,563 14,563
- for drug enforcement - - 13,171 13,171
- for tourism - 114,457 g 114,457
Assigned for museum maintenance and park - - 11,421 11,421
Unassigned 367,629 - - 367,629
Total fund balances 367.629 114,457 39,155 521,241
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances $ 654,147 $ 108,507 $ 39,155
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the
funds. 1,652,383
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for
current period expenditures and are therefore deferred in
the funds. 61,618
Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related 1o
pensions area applicable to future periods and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. (net) 236,444
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the
current year and therefore are not reported in the funds. {1,843,066)
Total net position of governmental activities $ 528620

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Blacksburg, South Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

REVENUES
Property taxes and penalties
Hospitality tax
Local option sales tax
Payment in lieu of taxes
Administrative overhead reimbursement
Licenses, permits and fees
Collection fees
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Victims assistance
Disposal fees and penalties
Intergovernmental revenues:
School district and auto reimbursements
State shared revenues
Investment earnings
Rental income
Miscellaneous revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Police department
Fire department
Street depariment
Cemetery department
Capital outiay:
General government
Police department
Street department
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest charges
Total Expenditures

Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures
Before Other Financing Sources & (Uses)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & (USES)
Loan proceeds

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund balances - beginning of year

Fund balances - end of year

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

Nenmajor Total
General Hospitality Governmental Gowvernmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

$ 818,846 $ S ] - -] 818,846
- 129 610 - 129,610
86,454 - - 86,454
6,359 - - 6,359
134,863 - - 134,863
399,210 - - 399,210
3,204 - - 3,204
48,764 - - 48,764

- - 10,428 10,428

29,631 - - 29,631
110,991 - S 110,991
49,791 - - 49,791
408 - # 408
6,404 - - 6,404
12,765 - 10,000 22,765
1,707,690 129,610 20,428 1,857,728
358,894 28,832 - 387,726
937,684 - 22,408 860,002
101,850 e S 101,650
355,476 e = 355,476
14,050 - - 14,050
8,752 - = 8,752
97,781 - 18,300 116,081
7.582 47,389 - 54,971
1,321 3,907 - 5,228
1,883,190 80,128 40,708 2,004,026
(175,500} 49,482 {20,280) (148,298)
24,136 - & 24,136
(151,364) 49,482 (20,280) (122,162)
518,893 64,975 59,435 643,403

$ 367,629 $ 114,457 $ 39,155 $ 521,241
13

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Blacksburg, South Carolina

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

of Governmental Funds To the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (previous page)
are different because;

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (previous page)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded
depreciation in the current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds.

Expenses in the statement of activities that do not consume current financial resources
are not reported as expenditures in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term
debt.

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefits earned net of contributions is reported
as pension expense.

Change in net position of governmental activities - per the Statement of Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

(122,162)

11,597

(1,044)

(30,423)

30,835

(39,503)

(150,700)

14
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Town of Blackshurg, South Carolina
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

REVENUES
Property taxes and penalties
Local option sales tax
Payment in lieu of taxes
Administrative overhead reimbursement
Licenses, permits and fees
Collection fees
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Disposal fee
Intergovernmental revenues:
School district and auto reimbursements
State shared revenues
Interest earnings
Rental income
Cemetery lot sales
Miscellaneous revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Police department
Fire department
Street department
Cemetery department
Capital outlay:
Capital expenditures
Debt service
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures

before other sources & (uses)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Loan proceeds

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning of year

Fund balances - end of year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
$ 821203 $ 821293 §$ 818846 $ (2,447)
86,325 86,325 86,454 129
41,998 - 6,359 6,359
- 134,863 134,863 -
376,250 376,250 399,210 22,960
2,700 2,700 3,204 504
170,000 40,000 48,764 8,764
28,000 28,000 29,631 1,631
91,400 91,400 110,991 19,591
63,000 63,000 49791 (13,209)
2,800 2,800 408 {2,392}
5,400 5,400 6,404 1,004
7,000 7,000 4,500 (2,500}
700 700 8,265 7,565
1,696,866 1,659,731 1,707,690 47,959
376,352 343,352 358,894 (15,542)
929,730 851,652 937,684 (86,032)
104,650 104,650 101,650 3,000
300,077 294,077 355,476 {61,399}
15,000 15,000 14,050 950
51,000 51,000 106,533 (565,533)
- - 8,903 (8,903)
1,776,809 1,669,731 1,883,190 (223,459)
{79,943) - (175,500) (175,500)
- e 24,136 (24,136)
(79,943) S (151,364) (151,364)
518,993 518,993 518,993 -
$ 439050 $ 518993 § 367629 $  (151,364)
15
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Town of Blacksburg, South Carolina
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
March 31, 2018

ASSETS
Currents assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables {net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Unbilled accounts receivable
Due toffrom other funds
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assels
Cash and cash equivalents - customer deposits & construction

Capital assets:
Land
Buildings
Distribution system
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES - Pension related

LIABLILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Other accrued expenses
Current portion of long-term debt - current lease payable

Total current liabilities

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets

Customer deposits payable
Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets

Noncurrent labilities:
Noncurrent portion of long term debt
Noncurrent net pension liability
Noncurrent acerued compensated absences and OPEB
Noncurrent feases payable
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - Pension related

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Water and Total
Sewer Proprietary
System Funds
$ 1,201,476 1,201,476
142,164 142,164
64,535 64,535
72,890 72,880
1,481,065 1,481,065
102,021 102,021
102,021 102,021
59,062 59,062
61,214 61214
16,369,185 16,369,185
1,081,594 1,081,594
(9,347,983) (9,347,983)
8,223,072 8,223,072
8,325,093 8,325,093
9,806,158 9,808,158
152,894 152,894
85.673 85,673
15,429 15,429
40,487 40,487
141,589 141,589
47 695 47695
47 695 47,695
903,791 903,791
197,789 197,789
64,441 64,441
1,166,021 1,166,021
1,355,305 1,355,305
8.212 8212
8,118,144 8,118,144
477,391 477,31
$ 8,595,635 8,595,535

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Blacksburg South Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Fund

For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

Operating revenues:
Metered water sales/admin fee - net of bad debts

Sewer service charges - net of bad debts
Tap fees
Customer service charges/penalties
Other revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Water purchased
Salaries, wages and benefits
Repairs, maintenance and supplies
Utilities
Professional fees
DHEC fees/laboratory testing
Insurance expense
Administration
Administrative overhead reimbursement
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Investment earnings
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses})

Net income before contributions

Capital contributions

Change in net position

Net position - beginning
Prior period GASB 75 adjustment
Net position - ending

Total
Water Proprietary
System Sewer System Fund

$ 1,078,350 $ - $ 1,078,350
- 363,721 363,721

189,085 20,000 209,085
90,091 30,901 120,992
3,659 1,255 4914
1,361,185 415,877 1,777,062
310,362 - 310,362
403,845 248,550 652,395
170,686 66,408 237,094
23,932 84,528 108,460
14,931 19,699 34,630
13,969 13,289 27,258
14,960 14,960 29,920
21,110 10,018 31,128
67,432 67,431 134,863
316,624 158,301 474,925
1,357,851 683,184 - 2,041,035
3,334 (267,307) (263,973)
6,790 2,329 9,119
(3,083) (1,057) (4,140)
3,707 1,272 4,979
7,041 (266,035) {258,994)

- 260,942 260,942

7,041 (5,093) 1,948
5,850,432 2,766,414 8,616,846
(15,792) (7,467) (23,259)

$ 5,841,681 $ 2,753,854 $ 8595535

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Blacksburg, South Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

Total
Proprietary
Funds
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers and users ] 1,768,726
Payments to/from others 61,228
Payments to employees and related benefits {652,395)
Payments to suppliers (807,182)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 370,377
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Capital Confributions 260,942
Construction and purchase of fixed assets {575,069)
Issuance of new debt (net of principal paid) 109,981
Principal paid on capital debt {27,118)
Interest paid on capital debt (4,140)
Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities (235,404)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest income received 9,119
Net cash provided {used) by investing activities 9,119
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 144,002
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year - restricted and unrestricted 1,159,405
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year - restricted and unrestricted $ 1,303,497
Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income {loss}) 3 (263,973}
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 474 924
(Increase) decrease in receivables 7,790
{Increase) decrease in deferred outflows - pensions (978)
{Increase) decrease in due to/from other funds 61,228
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable & other accrued exp. 42,845
Increase {decrease) in customer deposits payable 1,750
increase (decrease) in deferred inflows - pensions (10,562)
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 33,473
Increase (decrease) in accrued OPEB liability 23,880
Total adjustments 634,350
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 3 370,377
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement, 18
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TOWN OF BLACKSBURG
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2019

I. DESCRIPTION OF THE REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND
REPORTING POLICIES:

. INTRODUCTION:
The financial statements of the Town of Blacksburg are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Ac-
counting Principtes (GAAP). The Town's reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

. REPORTING ENTITY:
The Town of Blacksburg operates as a municipal ¢corporation under a charter granted by the State of South
Carolina on February 4, 1899. The Town operates under a council form of government and provides the fol-
lowing services as authorized by its charter: public safety (fire and police), highways and streets, sanitation,
health and social services, public improvements, planning and zoning, water and sewer utilities, and general
administrative services.

The accompanying general purpose financial statements include all Town funds, and governmental functions.
The primary criterion for determining inclusion or exclusion of a legally separate entity is financial accountabil-
ity, which is presumed to exist if the Town both appoints a voting majority of the entity's governing body, and
either 1) the Town is able to impose its will on the entity or, 2) there is a potential for the entity to provide spe-
cific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the Town. If either or both of the foregoing
conditions are not met, the entity could still be considered a component unit if it is fiscally dependent on the
Town. In order to be considered fiscally independent, an entity must have the authority to do all three of the
following:

A) Determine its budget without the Town having the authority to approve or modify that budget.
B) Levy taxes or set rates or charges without approval by the Town.
C) Issue bonded debt without approval by the Town.

Finally, an entity could be a component unit even if it met all the conditions described above if excluding it
would cause the Town's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Discretely presented component units:
At year end, the Town had no component units.

. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information about the reporting government as a whole. For the most part, the effect of interfund activi-
ty has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a signifi-
cant extent on fees and charges for support. Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide finan-
cial statements.

19
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The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or seg-
ment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from gods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund finan-
cial statements. Statement 34 is very specific in its definition and provides specifics to allow for determination
of “major funds.” In brief, major funds are funds whose revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets, or liabilities
(excluding extraordinary items) are at least 10 percent of corresponding totals for all governmental or enter-
prise funds and at least 5 percent of the aggregate amount for all governmental and enterprise funds for the
same item. The general fund is always a major fund. The water and sewer fund is also presented as a major
fund. The Statement allows presentation of other funds that are of particular importance to also be reported
as major funds. The Town has elected to report the Hospitality Special Revenue Fund as a major fund.

The underlying accounting system of the Town is organized and operated on the basis of separate funds,
each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted
for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues
and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for
in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities are controlled.

Fund financial statements for the primary government’s governmental and proprietary funds are presented af-
ter the government-wide financial statements. These statements display information about major funds indi-
vidually and nonmajor funds in the aggregate for governmental and enterprise funds. In the accompanying
general purpose financial statements, the various funds of the Town are grouped into two broad fund catego-
ries as follows:

Governmental funds
Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government's general activities.

General fund - The General fund is the Town's general operating fund and is used to account for all fi-
nancial transactions except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Principal sources of
revenue are property taxes, licenses and permits, and intergovernmental revenues. Primary expendi-
tures are for general government, public safety, public works, and building zoning.

Special Revenue funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds from specific rev-
enue sources (other than funding for major capital projects) that are legally obligated to expenditures for
specified purposes. The Town uses a special revenue funds to account for a narcotics fund whose use
is restricted by State law for drug enforcement, a victim assistance fund whose use is restricted by
State Law for aid to victims of crime, a hospitality tax fund whose use is restricted by State law for tour-
ism, and a museum fund whose use is assigned by Mayor and Council for maintenance of the Blacks-
burg Museum

Fiduciary funds - The fiduciary fund accounts for financial resources held for benefit of parties outside of
the government because the resources of that fund are not available to support the Town’s own pro-
grams. The Town uses agency funds to account for seized funds that are being held for the court sys-
tem until the cases are adjucated.
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Proprietary fund - Enterprise fund

Proprietary funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector. Proprietary funds are
used to account for activities where the determination of net income or loss is necessary or useful to sound
financial administration. An enterprise fund is used to account for operations which provide goods or ser-
vices and recover costs through user charges in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The
Town maintains one Enterprise fund to account for water and sewer utilities services provided to customers
within the Town and the surrounding areas. Services are supplied to customers under a rate structure de-
signed to produce revenues sufficient to recover operating expenses, including principal and interest on En-
terprise fund debt.

Significant New Accounting Standards Adopted — Change in Accounting Principle

The Town implemented GASB Statement No. 75 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postem-
ployment Benefits Other Than Pensions” in the year ended March 31, 2019. The primary objective of
this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information about other postemployment benefits (pri-
marily retiree medical benefits}) other than pensions (*OPEB") in external financial reports. The
requirements of the Statement aim to provide citizens and other users of the financial statements with
a clearer picture of the entity’s financial obligations to current and former employers for past services
rendered. Previous standards required an employer to recognize a liability for unfunded required con-
tributions to the OPEB plan (called “Net OPEB Obligation”). GASB Statement No. 75 establishes
standards for recognizing deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and the "Net
OPEB Liability,” which is the total OPEB liability less the fiduciary net position of the plan assets.
More extensive note disclosures are also required.

The adoption of the Statement had no impact on the Town's governmental fund financial statements
since governmental funds do not report long-term assets and liabilities. However, the adoption has
resulted in the restatement of the Town’s net position of the proprietary fund financial statements and
its government-wide financial statements as of April 1, 2018 to reflect the reporting of net OPEB liabil-
ityand deferred outflows of resources related to the Town’s OPEB plan. Net position reported in the
Town's financial statements was adjusted to reflect the cumulative change in accounting principle re-
lated to the adoption of the Statement as shown below:

Increase in net position - governmental activities $10,030
Decrease in net position - business-type activities/proprietary funds $23,259

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION:

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Under the economic resources measurement focus, all (both current and
long-term) economic resources and obligations of the reporting government are reported in the government-
wide financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses and
the related assets and liabilities are recognized in the accounts and reported in the general purpose financial
statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the meas-
urement focus applied. The Town’s recognition standards as discussed below are in compliance with State-
ment No. 33 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting, and Financial Reporting for Non-
exchange Transactions. Implementation of GASB Statement No. 33 did not have a material effect on the
Town’s financial statements, except that capital contributions from external sources received by the proprie-
tary fund are now reflected as revenues in the financial statements of the proprietary fund.
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The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.
All governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included in the combined balance
sheet. The reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered to be a measure of “available spending
resources.” Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases in net current assets. Ac-
cordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of “available spending resources” during a
period. All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. All as-
sets and liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included in the combined balance sheet.
Fund equity is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-type
operating statements present increases and decreases in total net position.

Governmental fund revenues and expenditures are recognized on the modified accrual basis. Revenue
recognition is subject to the measurable and availability criteria for the governmental funds in the fund finan-
cial statements. A 45 day period is used to determine availability. Exchange transactions are recognized as
revenues in the period in which they are earned (i.e. the related goods or services are provided). Locally im-
posed derived tax revenues are recognized as revenues in the period in which the underlying exchange
transaction upon which they are based takes place. Imposed non-exchange transactions are recognized as
revenues in the period for which they were imposed. If the period of use is not specified, they are recognized
as revenues when an enforceable legal claim to the revenues arises or when they are received, whichever
occurs first. Government-mandated and voluntary non-exchange transactions are recognized as revenues
when all applicable eligibility requirements have been met. The revenues susceptible to accrual include prop-
erty taxes, franchise fees, licenses, interest revenues, and charges for services. Fines and permits are not
susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Expenditures are
recognized when the fund liability is incurred, except principal and interest on General Long-Term Obligations
which are recognized when due or when funds have been made available for payment.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by the Proprietary fund. Under this method, revenues are recorded
when earned, and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payment-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the gov-
ernment’s proprietary fund and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct cost and program revenue reported for the various functions concerned.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or seg-
ment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues. Likewise, internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise fund are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
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disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Periodically management evaluates its allowance for uncollectibles based on historical experience as well as
current credit conditions.

Certain reclassifications are made to prior year amounts in the accompanying financial statements to conform
to current year presentation.

Management evaluates subsequent events through the report issuance date

Financial Statement Presentation

The Town reports the following governmental funds:

General Fund - This fund is established to account for resources devoted to financing the general services
that the Town performs for its citizens. General tax revenues and other sources of revenue used to finance
the fundamental operations of the Town are included in this Fund. The Fund is charged with all costs of oper-
ating the government for which a separate fund has not been established.

Special Revenue Funds — These funds are established to account for resources from specific reve-
nue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The primary revenue
sources for the different special revenue funds include hospitality tax collections, narcotics seizures
allocated to the Town by the court system, museum donations and victims advocate assessments.

Fiduciary Fund — This fund is used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government because the resources of that fund are not available to support the Town’s own
programs. The Town uses an agency type fiduciary fund to account for seized assets that are be-
ing held for the court system until the cases are adjucated. The agency fund consists of a cash ac-
count and a corresponding liability account. The agency fund reports no income or expenditures.

The Town reports the following enterprise funds:

The Water and Sewer System Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the Water and Sewer
System. Enterprise Funds are established to account for operations that are financed and operated in a man-
ner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent is that costs of providing goods or services to the
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

E. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED QUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION/

FUND BALANCE:

Deposits and investments
The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. The Town
has no investments that require fair value measurement. Investments are composed of savings accounts and
money market funds where cost approximates fair value.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Town considers all short-term investments with original ma-
turities of three months or less, when acquired, to be cash equivalents.
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Receivables and payables
Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of

the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds.”

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles based on manage-
ment’s overall estimate of collectability using historical collection experience and subsequent collection infor-
mation. The Town reports utility accounts receivable and property taxes receivable that are unsecured.

The Town Code provides for the tax levy on all real property located within the Town's corporate limits on the
first day of October. Vehicle taxes are levied monthly and are billed and collected by Cherokee County and
remitted to the Town monthly during the year. Real property taxes are delinquent after February 28 of the fol-
lowing year. The lien date is one year from the date of levy. The property tax rate approved by ordinance for
fiscal year 2019 was 175.8 mills.

Utility sales revenues are recognized at the time the services are provided. Substantially all customer bal-
ances over 90 days past due are considered uncollectible.

Receivables for reimbursements under grants are recognized when the related reimbursable expenditure is
incurred.

Inventories and prepaid items
The Towns no material amounts of inventory.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted assets
Certain cash accounts, investment accounts, and receivables are classified as restricted assets in the com-
bined balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable debt covenants, grant agreements, user
agreements, etc.

Capital assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, side-

walks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in
the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an
initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 for non-real estate items and $50,000 for real estate (amount not
rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of five years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend
assets' lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest in-
curred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed but not in governmental-type activities.

Property, plant, and equipment (including capital leased assets) are depreciated using the straight line meth-
od over the following estimated useful lives: (Land is not depreciated)
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6.

Buildings . 40 years
Infrastructure 10 to 40 years
Water system in service 33 years
Sewer system in service 33 years
Vehicles and equipment 5to 10 years

Long-term obligations
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-

term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as
well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs
are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund balance/net position classifications

Equity accounts represent the difference between the assets and the liabilities of a government or a given
fund. Resources often come with limitations on how they may be used by the recipient. These purpose re-
strictions should be reflected in the equity section of the statement of position. In governmental funds, a clas-
sification of fund balance would be appropriate for this purpose. In government-wide and proprietary fund fi-
nancial statements, such amounts would be reflected as part of restricted net position.

Assignments are used to reflect a government's intended use of current available financial resources. The fo-
cus on current financial resources is unigue to governmental funds. Accordingly, designations should be re-
ported only on the governmental fund balance sheet. There is no equivalent equity assignment that may be
used for government-wide financial reporting or for proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial reporting to re-
flect the intended use of resources.

Non-spendable fund balances represents the portion of fund balance that is associated with such items as
inventories, prepaids, long-term loans and notes receivable, and property available for resale (unless the
proceeds of the sale are restricted, committed or assigned) and is not available for appropriation or ex-
penditure at the balance sheet date.

Restricted fund balances have constraints placed on the use of resources from either external creditors or im-
posed by law through constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Commiitted fund balances can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal
action of the government'’s highest level of decision-making authority. Those committed amounts cannot be
used for any other purpose unless the government removes or changes the specified use by taking the same
type of action it employed to previously commit those amounts.

Assigned fund balances are constrained by the government's intent to be used for specific purpose but are
neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned fund balances have not been assigned to other funds and have not been restricted, committed, or
assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

Restricted for tourism — represents funds collected from hospitality tax and required to be used specifically for
tourism expenditures.
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Restricted for drug enforcement - represents funds collected and seized from police fines and forfeitures and
required to be expended specifically for drug enforcement activities.

Restricted for victims assistance — represents funds collected from police fines and forfeitures and required to
be used specifically for victims’ assistance expenditures.

Assigned for museum maintenance - represents funds donated to the Town that are required by the donors to
be used specifically for the museum.

Unassigned - represents resources available for appropriation in following years for any iawful purpose.

When committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balances are available for use for the purpose of an ex-
penditure, it is the government's policy to use committed amounts first, and then assigned amounts and finally
unassigned amounts as they are needed when any of those unrestricted fund balances could be used.

When both restricted and unrestricted fund balances/net position are available and could be used for use for
the purpose of an expenditure, it is the government’s policy to spend restricted amounts first, then unrestricted
resources as they are needed when either could be used.

For committed fund balances, the government’s highest level of decision making is Town Council. The formal
action that is required to establish (and modify or rescind) a fund balance commitment is a Town Ordinance.

For assigned fund balances, the Mayor is authorized to assign amounts to a specific purpose. Appointment
by Town Council is the policy established pursuant to which authorization is given.

Government-wide and fund financial statements must be presented using an all-inclusive format. That is, the
results of the current period's activities are to be reported as an addition to (or a deduction from) equity at the
beginning of the period to arrive at the closing equity balance. Thus changes in net position on the govern-
ment-wide statement of activities is added to (or deducted from) net position — beginning of the fiscal year to
arrive at net position — end of the fiscal year.

Net positions are defined as the difference between assets and liabilities in the government-wide statement of
net position.

The government-wide statement of net position reports all government assets, therefore, a significant portion
of the net position reported there typically reflects a government’s investment in capital assets. To draw fi-
nancial statement users’ attention to this important information, GAAP require the amount of net position in-
vested in capital assets to be reported as a separate category of net position. Net position invested in capital
assets, net of related debt includes all capital assets less accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal
of related debt.

Restrictions may be imposed on a portion of a government’s net position by parties outside the government
(such as creditors, grantors, contributors}). In some cases, such restricted assets are directly associated with
particular liabilities (for instance, restricted assets associated with revenue bonds). An amount equal to these
restricted assets, less any related liabilities, is reported as restricted net position.

GAAP direct that the difference between total net position and the two categories discussed above (net in-
vested in capital assets and restricted net position) be reported as unrestricted net position. This amount may
be a deficit to the extent that a government has elected to fund certain long-term liabilities (vacation leave, for
instance) as they come due rather than when they are incurred.

26



11.

¥ Il 5N I N BN I T B B B D D IR BN O B e e
o

8.

©

Comparative data/reclassifications

Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in order to provide an understanding of the
changes in the financial position and operations of the funds. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior
year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year's presentation.

Expenses/Expenditures

Consistent with the current financial resources measurement focus, the governmental fund statement of ac-
tivities reports expenditures rather than expenses. Expenditures in the fund financial statements are present-
ed by character for the governmental funds. The character of an expenditure is based upon the periods it is
presumed to benefit. Expenditures that primarily benefit the present period (current expenditures) are distin-
guished from those presumed to benefit both the present and future periods (debt service expenditures and
capital outlay expenditures). GAAP also provide for a fourth character classification, intergovernmental ex-
penditures, for situations where one governmental entity provides resources to another.

Government-wide expenses are reported by function. The government-wide financial statements use the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. As a resuit, there are important
differences between the expenditures reported on the governmental fund financial statements and those ex-
penses reported on the government-wide financial statements. For example, the governmental funds report
capital outlay expenditures, while the government-wide financial statements report depreciation.

The focus in proprietary funds is on expenses rather than expenditures. GAAP require that the statement of
activities for proprietary funds distinguish operating from nonoperating expenses. GAAP do not provide an
authoritative definition of operating and nonoperating expenses for this purpose, although GAAP indicate that
financial statement preparers may wish to consider the authoritative guidance on identifying cash flows from
operating activities in arriving at their own definitions.

. Compensated Absences

A total of 60 days of sick leave may be accumulated by each employee; however, employees are
not paid for the accumulated sick leave upon retirement or other termination. A maximum of 4
weeks (160 hrs.) of annual leave can be accumulated. Upon retirement or termination of employ-
ment, annual leave will be paid up to the accrual date of employment.

The Town accrues a liability for compensated absences that meets the following criteria:

(1) The Town's obligation relating to employees' rights to receive compensation for future
absences is attributable to employees’ services already rendered.

(2) The obligation relates to rights that vest or accumulate.

(3} Payment of the compensation is probable.

(4) The amount can be reasonably estimated.

In accordance with the above criteria, the Town has accrued a liability for vacation pay which has
been earned but not taken by Town employees. For entity-wide report presentation, the liability for
compensated absences expected to be taken during the next fiscal year is included in the current li-
abilities of the related fund.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflow of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption
of net position that apples to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of re-
sources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of
net position that apples to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
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(revenue) until then. The government reports deferred inflows under the modified accrual approach
from property taxes and hospitality taxes.

Il. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide
statement of net position.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental funds
and net position — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position.

One element of that reconciliation states “governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. In the
statement of net position, the cost of these assets is recorded and that cost is allocated over their estimated
useful lives.” Explanation of this difference totaling $1,552,382 is as follows:

Total capital assets $ 3,977,803
Accumulated depreciation (2,425.421)

Net adjustment to increase fund balance - total governmental
Funds to arrive at net position — governmental activities 1,662,382

Another element of that reconciliation states “certain assets are not available to pay for current period expend-
itures and, therefore, are deferred or restricted in the funds.” Explanation of this difference totaling $61,618 is

as follows:
Deferred inflows — unavailable property taxes $ 61618
Net adjustment to increase fund balance - total governmental
funds to arrive at net position — governmental activities 61,618

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to pen-
sions are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Explanation of this differ-
ence totaling $236,444 is as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources $ 269,498
Deferred inflows of resources (33,054)

Net adjustment to increase fund balance - total governmental
funds to arrive at net position — governmental activities 236,444

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities including bonds payable are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” Explanation of this difference
totaling $(1,843,066) is as follows:
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Accrued compensated absences $ (61,998)
OPEB liability (221,608)
Net pension obligations (1,404,975)
Capital leases payable (16,554)
Bonds payable (147,931)
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds
to arrive at net position — governmental activities (1,843.066)

Total net adjustments to increase fund balance - total governmental
funds to arrive at net position — governmental activities $ 7,379

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes reconcilia-
tion between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net position of governmen-
tal activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities.

One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense.

The details of this $11,597 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $ 124,833
Depreciation expense {113,236)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances -
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities 11,597

Another element of that reconciliations states that “revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. The details of this $(1,044) are as fol-
lows:

Deferred revenue decrease for unavailable taxes $ (1,044)
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances —

total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities (1.044)

Another element of that reconciliations states that “expenses in the statement of activities that do not use current
financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the funds. The details of this $(30,423) are as follows:
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OPEB increase $ (14,890)
Deferred compensated absences increase (15,533)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities (30,423)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt con-
sumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on
net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activi-
ties” The details of this $30,835 are as follows:

Principal payments $ 54,971
Financing proceeds (24.136)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities 30,835

Another element of that reconciliations states that “governmental funds report pension contributions as expendi-
tures, however, in the statement of activities, the cost of pension benefits earned net of contributions is reported
as a pension expense. The details of this $(39,503) are as follows:

Pension Contributions $ 98,335
Cost of benefits earned net of contributions (137,838)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities (39,503)

Total net adjustments to decrease net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position

of governmental activities $ (28,538)

C. Reclassifications and eliminations

Interfund balances must generally be eliminated in the government-wide financial statements, except for net re-
sidual amounts due between governmental activities. Any allocations must reduce the expense of the function

from which the expenses are being allocated, so that expenses are reported only once — in the function in which
they are allocated.

lll. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY:

30



i
I
i
[
i
i
i
]
[
[
[
[
[
J
]
i
J
I
I

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION:

In accordance with the State of South Carolina General Statutes, the Town prepares an annual balanced budget
ordinance. The Town adopts annual budgets for the General fund using the modified accrual basis which is con-
sistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for the Enterprise funds
using the full accrual basis. An annual budget for a Special Revenue fund is not adopted because sufficient
budgetary control is achieved through restrictions that are included in the various grant agreements. An annual
operating budget for the Capital Projects fund is not adopted as its revenues and expenditures are adopted on a
project basis. Appropriations for the General and Enterprise funds lapse at the end of the budget year.

In February, the budget process begins with comprehensive work sessions in which the Town Administrator
meets with all department heads to discuss current and future trends, needs, and goals of the Town. All depart-
ment heads submit comprehensive lists of programs, projects, and initiatives to be considered in the upcoming
budget and meet with Town Administrator individually. The Council holds public hearings and a final budget must
be prepared and adopted no later than March 31.

Budgets are prepared at the fund, function, and department level. Budgets are adopted at the fund level and are
amended as necessary during the fiscal year subject to Town Council approval. During the year, no supple-
mental appropriations were adopted by the Town Council. The total budgeted revenues and total budgeted ex-
penditures remained unchanged.

B. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER REVENUES AND BUDGET
For the year ended March 31, 2019, expenditures exceeded revenues in the following funds:

General fund $ 175,500
Water and sewer enterprise fund 258,994
Narcotics seizure fund 21,138
Victim’s rights advocate fund 9,142

The General Fund's expenditures exceeded budget by $223,459.

C. DEFICIT FUND EQUITY:

No funds reported a deficit fund balances as of March 31, 2019.

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS:

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS:

The Town maintains its cash accounts at several commercial banks. The cash balances are insured by
FDIC up to $100,000. Cash balances at risk and cash balances shown on the Balance Sheet may differ
because of outstanding checks and deposits. The Town's deposits are categorized to give an indication
of the level of risk assumed by the Town. During the year and at year end all deposits of the Town were
insured or collateralized with securities held by the Town or by its agent in the Town’s name.

Deposits at year end, including savings accounts and money market accounts, are carried at cost (fair
value) of $1,861,963 with weighted maturities of less than one year.
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Interest rate risk — In accordance with its investment policy, the government manages its exposure to declines in
fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment activity to less than twelve months.

Credit risk — The government does not invest in commercial paper or corporate bonds in order to limit its exposure
to credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk and custodial risk — The government'’s investment policy does not allow for an invest-
ment in any one issuer that is in excess of amounts pledged by collateralized securities

The State of South Carolina General Statutes permit the Town to invest in the following types of instruments:
1. Obligations of the United States, its agencies and instrumentalities.
2. Obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of its political subdivisions.

3. Savings and Loan Associations to the extent that the same are insured by an agency of the federal gov-
ernment.

4. Certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements provided the collateral is of the types described in 1 and 2
above and has a market value in excess of the certificate of deposit or repurchase agreement plus accrued in-
terest, and is held by a third party as escrow agent or custodian.

5. Repurchase agreements when collateralized by securities of the type described in 1 and 2 above and held by
a third party as escrow agent or custodian, of a market value not less than the amount of the repurchase agree-
ment so collateralized, including interest.

6. No load open-end or closed-end management type investment companies or investment trusts registered un-
der the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, where the investment is made by a bank or trust compa-
ny or savings and loan association or other financial institution when acting as trustee or agent for a bond or oth-
er debt issue of the Town if the particular portfolio of the investment company or investment trust in which the in-
vestment is made (i) is limited to obligations described in items 1, 2 and 5 above and (ii} has among its objectives
the attempt to maintain a constant net asset value of one dollar a share and to that end, values its assets by the
amortized cost method.

Restricted investments, as reported in the government-wide statements, reflects securities held in restricted ac-
counts for specified purposes. The amount included under Net position - restricted for the proprietary fund re-
flects amounts required by bond ordinance to be set aside as debt service and debt reserve funds, unexpended
construction project funds, and customer deposit funds. The amounts included under Net position — restricted in
the governmental funds include cash related to a revolving loan account, victims’ assistance funds, and other
ongoing projects.

B. RECEIVABLES:

Receivables at March 31, 2019, net of applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows:
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Accounts Receivable
Governmental funds
Taxes receivable from Cherokee County
Disposal fees
Local option sales tax/property tax credit funds
Homestead exemption taxes
MASC license collections
SRO reimbursement — school district
Revenues from the magistrate
Taxes
Other
Franchise fees
Total

Interfund Receivables

$ 18,586
4,084
21,559
55,706
15,266
28,683
4,235
61,618
308
33,298

$ 243,343

interfund balances must generally be eliminated in the government-wide financial statements, except for net re-
sidual amounts due between governmental activities. Any allocations must reduce the expense of the function
from which the expenses are being allocated, so that expenses are reported only once - in the function in which

they are allocated.

C.CAPITAL ASSETS:

A summary of changes in governmental type activities capital assets follows:

Balance Balance
04-01-18 Additions  Deletions 03-31-18

Governmental type activities:
Land $ 244355 $ $ $ 244,355
Buildings 1,621,288 1,621,288
Infrastructure 324,972 324,972
Equipment 1,662,357 124,832 1,787,189
Total 3,862,972 124,832 3,977,804
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (2,312.185) {113.236) (2.425,421)
Net Governmental Activities $1,540,787 $1,552,383
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A summary of business type activities capital assets follows:

Balance Balance
04-01-18 Additions  Deletions 03-31-19
Business type activities:
Land and easements $ 59,062 3 $ $ 59,062
Buildings 61,214 61,214
Distribution System 15,904,097 465,090 16,369,187
Equipment 971,613 109,981 1,081,594
Total 16,995,986 575,071 17,571,057
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (8.873.059) (474,925) {9,347 984)
Net Business Activities $8122927 $ 8223073

Depreciation expense was charged to programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 39,324
Police Department 50,579
Street Department 23,333

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $113.236

Business-Type Activities:

Water Fund $316,624
Sewer Fund 158,301

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities $474,925

Construction commitments:

During the year the Town was a party to construction contracts related to grant-funded water and sewer improve-
ments. Projects were capitalized as different phases were completed. New projects are planned for FY2019.

D. LONG-TERM DEBT:

NOTES AND BONDS PAYABLE:

In 2014, the town issued a $333,000 Series 2014A general obligation improvement bond to build a history mu-
seum. The asset and related obligation are accounted for in the general fund in the government-wide financial
statements. The Series 2014A bond is being repaid in 7 annual installments of $51,296 including interest at
2% per annum beginning July 1, 2015.



The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for notes payable for the year ended March 31, 2019:
Balance Balance Due Within
04-01-18 issued Retired 03-31-19 One Year
Governmental Activities:

Museum building $195 320 $ $47,390  $147.930 $ 48,337
Total Governmental Activities $195,320 $ $47,390 $147.930 $ 48,337

Business Type Activities:
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$ 0
$ 0

3 0
Total Business Type Activities $ 0
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the notes payable portion of long-term debt, excluding
capital leases reported separately, as of March 31, 2019, are as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Year
Ending Principal Interest
2020 $ 48,337 $ 2,858
2021 49,303 1,992
2022 50,290 1,006
Totals $147,930 $ 5056
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Year
Ending Principal Interest
2019 $ 0 $ 0
Total $ 0 $+ 0

CAPITAL LEASES (LEASE PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS):

The Town has entered into a governmental-type lease/purchase agreement for a police car accounted for as a
capital lease. The leased assets are accounted for in the General Fund. The assets under capital leases to-
taled $24,136 with accumulated depreciation of $3,078 at March 31, 2019. The following is a schedule of fu-
ture minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with the net present value of the minimum lease
payments as of March 31, 2019.

Principal Interest

Year ending March 31, 2020 $ 7,985 $ 917
2021 8,570 333

Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 16,555 e 1280

The Town has entered into a proprietary type lease/purchase agreements for a backhoe and two trucks ac-
counted for as a capital leases. The leased assets are accounted for in the Water and Sewer Fund. The as-
sets under capital leases totaled $134,695 with accumulated depreciation of $12,353 at March 31, 2019. The
following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with the net present
value of the minimum lease payments as of March 31, 2019.
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D Principal Interest
Year ending March 31, 2020 $ 40,314 $ 5,150
2021 42,894 2,570
2022 19,403 461
2023 2,317 31
I Total Minimum Lease Payments $104,928 § 8212
[l The following is a summary of changes in lease obligations for the year ended March 31, 2019:
Balance Balance Due Within
I 04-01-18 Issued Retired 03-31-19 One Year
General Long-Term Debt:
_ Lease obligations $ 0 $24136 $7581 §$ 16555 § 7,985
L Proprietary Fund:
Lease obligations $ 22065 $109.981 $27.118 $104.8928  $40.314

—  OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

The following is a summary of accrued compensated absences, OPEB liability and Net Pension Liability at
March 31, 2019:

L

Accrued absences OPEB Liability Net Pension Liability Total
General Fund $ 51,998 $221,608 $1,404 975 $1,678,581

Proprietary Fund 46,163 151,626 903,791 1,101,580
Totals $98,161 $373.234 $2,308766  $2.780.161

In prior years, the general fund has been used to liquidate other long-term liabilities for governmental-type obli-
gations.

V. OTHER INFORMATION:

The Town's risk management combines elements of both self-insurance and purchased insurance policies divided
into coverage for comprehensive general liability, automobile liability, automobile physical damage, workers' com-
pensation, property, crime insurance, employee health care insurance, and "all risk" insurance including theft,
flood and earthquake. The costs of these policies are accounted for in the General fund.

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries insurance pools sponsored by the SC Municipal
Insurance and Risk Financing Fund. Workers' compensation is carried by the State Accident Fund. Employee
health care is carried by the BlueCross BlueShield of SC. The remaining policies are carried by the State of
South Carolina Insurance Reserve Fund.
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The workers' compensation policy provides coverage as required by statute. The policies essentially cover the
amount of the loss. In the event a claim is settled for an amount exceeding the limits of these policies, the Town
would have to pay the excess. Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fis-
cal years.

B.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The Town is not involved in any material related party transactions.

C.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the report issuance date.

D.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot
be determined at this time, although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial,

The Town is party to various civil lawsuits and other legal actions. In the opinion of the Town's attorney and man-
agement, the ultimate outcome of these suits is not expected to have a significant impact upon the Town's finan-
cial position.

The Town participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs and state funded grant programs.
These programs are subject to financial compliance audits by the Town's auditors and by auditors of the federal
or state grantor agencies. Upon audit, should it be determined that the Town has failed to comply with applica-
ble requirements of the grants, then some or all of the grant expenditures may be disallowed and a portion of
the grant expenditure may become reimbursable to the grantor. Management believes that any required re-
funds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for any re-
funds.

When the Town is a party to construction contracts related to grant-funded improvement contracts that are not
completed at year end, the projects are reported as construction in progress in the financial statements.

The Town is involved in various lawsuits in the normal course of business. Management or Town Counsel

cannot predict the outcome of the lawsuits or estimate the amount of loss that may result. Accordingly, no pro-
vision for any contingent liabilities that may result has been made in the financial statements.

E.EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:

Pension Plan:

All employees of the Town participate in one of two defined benefit pension plans, administered by the State of
South Carolina. The South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) and the Police Officer's Retirement System
(PORS), both of which are cost sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement plans. The total payroll for
active employees covered by the SCRS for the year ended March 31, 2019 was $650,700. The total payroll for
active employees covered by the PORS for the year ended March 31, 2019 was $302,923. The payroll for retired
members for the year ended March 31, 2019 was $37,762 for retirees covered by the SCRS and $154,131 for re-
tirees covered by the PORS.
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The SCRS and PORS offer retirement and disability benefits, cost of living adjustments on an ad-hoc basis, life
insurance benefits, and survivor benefits. The plans’ provisions are established under Title 9 of the SC Code of
Laws.

Both employees and the Town are required to contribute to the SCRS and PORS at rates established under the
authority of Title 9 of the Code of Laws. The Town's contributions are actuarially determined, but are communi-
cated to and paid by the Town as a percentage of the employees’ annual earnings. For year ended March 31,
2019, and the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Town contributed 100% of the required contributions.
At year end, contributions by the Town for employees covered by the SCRS and PORS were based on 14.41%
and 16.84% of the employees’ earnings and amounted to $97,508 for the year ended March 31, 2019 (SCRS)
and $75,838(PORS), $83,626 (SCRS) and $65,249 (PORS) for the year ended March 31, 2018 and $68,356
(SCRS) and $58,265 (PORS) for the year ended March 31, 2017. Employee contributions for the SCRS and
PORS were based on 9.00% and 2.75% of the employees’ earnings and amounted to $61,962 for the year ended
March 31, 2019 (SCRS) and $44,563 (PORS), $57,665 (SCRS) and $40,897 (PORS) for the year ended March
31, 2018, and $51,640 (SCRS) and $38,697 (PORS) for the year ended March 31, 2017.

A comprehensive annual financial report containing financial statements and required supplementary information
for the SCRS and PORS is issued and publicly available by writing to South Carolina Retirement Systems, P.O.
Box 11960, Columbia, SC, 29211-1960.

At March 31, 2019 the Town reported a liability of $1,425,089 for its proportionate share of the collective net pen-
sion liability of the South Carolina Retirement System and a liability of $883,677 for its proportionate share of the
collective net pension liability of the South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System. The collective net pension
liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017. The System’s proportion of the collective net pen-
sion liability was based on the employers’ shares of contributions to the pension plan relative to the total employer
contributions of all participating South Carolina employers. At March 31, 2019 the System's proportion was
0.008360% for the South Carolina Retirement System and 0.031186% for the South Carolina Police Officers Re-
tirement System. Employer contributions from the Town of Blacksburg used to calculate the proportionate share
of liability for the year ended March 31, 2019 were $83,561 for the South Carolina Retirement System and
$65,818 for the South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System

For the year ended March 31, 2019, the Town’s annual actuarially allocated pension cost was $137,838 for the
South Carolina Retirement System and $107,544 for the South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System. At
March 31, 2019, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources (deferred pension charges) and deferred in-
flows of resources (deferred pension credits) related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
QOutflows of Inflows of
Description Resources Resources
SCRS
Difference Between Expended and Actual Expenence $ 2,572 $ 8,386
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 22,638
Changes in Proportionate Share and Differences Between Employer Contributions
and Proportionate Share of Total Employer Contributions 61,824 4,562
The Town's Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date 97,508
Assumption changes 56,540
Total SCRS 241,082 12,948
PORS
Difference Between Expended and Actual Experience 27,228 0
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 17,671
Changes in Proportionate Share and Differences Between Employer Contributions and
Proportionate Share of Total Employer Contributions 2,308 28,813
The Town's Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date 75,838
Assumption changes 58,265
Total PORS 181,310 28,318
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Total SCRS and PORS $ 422,302 $41.266

Approximately $97,508 and $75,838 that were reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the Town's
contributions subsequent to the measurement date to the SCRS and PORS, respectively, will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liabilities in the year March 31, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows
of resources (deferred pension charges) and deferred inflows of resources (deferred pension credits) related to
the SCRS and PORS will increase (decrease) pension expense as follows:

Year Ended

March 31, SCRS PORS Total
2020 $ 74,631 $ 46,077 $ 120,708
2021 59,198 29,359 88,557
2022 -1,903 2,087 184
2023 -1,299 -369 -1,668
Total $ 130,627 3 L7154 $ 207,781

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN

Description of the Entity

The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBAY}, created July 1, 2012 and governed by an 11-member
Board, is the state agency responsible for the administration and management of the various Retirement Systems and
retirementprograms ofthe state of South Carolina, including the State Optional Retirement Program andthe S.C.
Deferred Compensation Program, as well asthe state’s employeeinsurance programs. As such, PEBAisresponsible for
administering the South Carolina Retirement Systems’ five defined benefit pension plans. The Retirement Funding and
Administration Act of 2017, which became effective July 1, 2017, increased the employer and employee contribution
rates, established a ceiling on the SCRS and PORS employee contribution rates, lowered the assumed rate of return,
required ascheduledreduction ofthe funding periods, and addressedvarious governance issuesincluding the as-
signment of the PEBA Board as custodian of the retirement trust funds and assignment of the RSIC and PEBA as co-
trustees ofthe assets ofthe retirementtrustfunds. Bylaw, the State Fiscal Accountability Authority (SFAA), which
consistsoffive elected officials, alsoreviews certain PEBA Board decisionsregarding the actuary ofthe Systems.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, and
pension expense, information aboutthe fiduciary net position ofthe Systems and additions to/deductions from the
Systemsfiduciary netpositionhave been determined onthe accrual basis ofaccounting as they are reported by the
Systemsinaccordancewithgenerally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Forthis purpose, revenues are recog-
nized when earned and expenses are recognized whenincurred. Benefit and refund expenses are recognized when
dueand payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value.

PEBA issues a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) containing financial statements and required
supplementary information forthe Systems’ Pension Trust Funds. The CAFR is publicly available through the Retire-
ment Benefits' link on PEBA’s website at www.peba.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained by submitting arequestto
PEBA, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, SC 29223. PEBA is considered a division ofthe primary government of the
state of South Carolinaand therefore, retirementtrustfund financialinformation s also included in the comprehen-
sive annual financial report of the state.

Plan Descriptions

The South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a cost—sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan,
was established July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-1-20 of the South Carolina Code of Laws forthe
purpose of providing retirement and other benefits for teachers and employees of the state and its political subdivi-
sions. SCRS covers employees of state agencies, public school districts, highereducation institutions, other partic-
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ipating local subdivisions of government and individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly at or
afterthe 2012 general election.

The State Optional Retirement Program (State ORP) is adefined contribution planthatis offeredas analternative to
SCRS to certain newly hired employees of state agencies, institutions of higher education, public school districts and
individuals first elected to the General Assembly at or after the general election in November 2012, State
ORP participants directthe investmentoftheirfundsinto anaccountadministered by one of fourthird partyrecord
keepers.

The South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System(PORS), acost—sharingmultiple-employerdefinedbenefitpen-
sion plan, was established July 1, 1962, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-11-20 of the South Carolina Code of
Laws for the purpose of providing retirement and other benefits to police officers and firefighters. PORS also covers
peace officers, coroners, probate judges and magistrates.

Membership

Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. A brief summary of the re-
quirements under each system is presented below.

SCRS- Generally, allemployees of covered employers are required to participate in and contribute to the system as
a condition of employment. This plan covers general employees and teachers and individuals newly elected to the
South Carolina General Assembly beginning with the November 2012 general election. An employee member ofthe
system with an effective date of membership priorto July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee member of
the system with an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three member.

+ State ORP-Asanalternativetomembershipin SCRS, newly hired state, public school, and highereducation
employees and individuals newly elected tothe S.C. General Assembly beginning with the November 2012 general
election have the optionto participate in the State ORP. PEBA assumes nolliability for State ORP benefits. Rather, the
benefits aretheliability ofthe fourthird party recordkeepers. Forthisreason, State ORP assets are notpart of the re-
tirement systems’ trust funds for financial statement purposes. Contributions to the State ORP are atthe same ratesas
SCRS. Adirectremittanceisrequiredfromtheemployertothemember'saccountwiththe ORP vendorfor the em-
ployee contribution and a portion of the employer contribution (5 percent). A direct remittance is also required
to SCRS for the remaining portion of the employer contribution and an incidental death benefit contribution, if
applicable, which is retained by SCRS.

[ PORS-TobeeligibleforPORS membership, anemployee mustbe requiredbythe terms of hisemployment, by
election or appointment, to preserve public order, protect life and property, and detect crimes in the state; to pre-
vent and control property destruction by fire; orto serve as a peace officeremployed by the Department of Correc-
tions, the Department of Juvenile Justice, or the Department of Mental Health. Probate judges and coroners may elect
membershipin PORS. Magistrates are requiredto participate in PORS for service as amagistrate. PORS members,
otherthanmagistrates and probatejudges, mustalsoearnatleast$2,000 peryearanddevote atleast 1,600 hours
per year to this work, unless exempted by statute. An employee member of the system with an effective date
of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee member of the system with an effective
date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three member.

0
[ Benefits

Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not have the authority to estab-
lish oramend benefittermswithoutalegislative changeinthe code oflaws. Key elements ofthe benefitcalculationin-
clude thebenefitmultiplier,years ofservice, andaveragefinalcompensation/currentannualsalary. Abrief sum-
maryofthe benefit terms for each system is presented below.

¢ SCRS-AClass Twomemberwhohas separatedfromservicewith atleastfive ormoreyearsofearnedserviceis
eligible foramonthly pension atage 65 orwith 28 years credited service regardless ofage. Amember mayelect
earlyretirementwith reduced pension benefits payable at age 55 with 25 years of service credit. AClass Three
memberwho has separatedfromservicewithatleasteightormore yearsofearnedserviceiseligibleforamonthly
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pensionuponsatisfyingthe Rule of 90requirementthatthetotalofthemember's ageandthemembe r'screditable
service equals atleast 90 years. Both Class Two and Class Three members are eligible to receive areduceddeferred
annuity at age 60 if they satisfy the five- or eight-year earned service requirement, respectively. An incidental death
benefitis also available to beneficiaries of active andretired members of employers who participate inthedeath
benefit program.

Theannualretirementallowance ofeligibleretirees ortheirsurvivingannuitantsisincreasedbythelesserofone
percentorfive hundreddollarseveryJuly 1. Onlythose annuitantsinreceiptofabenefiton July 1 ofthe preceding
yearareeligibletoreceivetheincrease. Memberswhoretire under the early retirement provisions at age 55with 25
years of service are not eligible for the benefit adjustmentuntil the second July 1 afterreaching age 60 orthe sec-
ond July 1 after the date they would have had 28 years of service credit had they not retired.

| PORS-ACIlass Twomemberwhohas separatedfrom servicewithatleastfive ormoreyearsofearnedserviceis
eligible for amonthly pension at age 55 or with 25 years of service regardless of age. A Class Three memberwho has
separatedfromservicewithatleasteightormoreyears ofearnedserviceis eligible foramonthly pensionatage 55 or
with 27 years of service regardless of age. BothClass Twoand Class Threemembersareeligibletoreceive a de-
ferred annuity at age 55 with five or eight years of earned service, respectively. An incidental death benefit is also
available to beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who participate in the death benefit program.
Accidental death benefits are also provided uponthe death of an active memberworkingfora covered employer
whose death was a natural and proximate result of an injury incurred while in the performance of duty.

Theretirementallowance of eligible retirees ortheir surviving annuitantsis increased by the lesserof one percent or
fivehundreddollars every July 1. Onlythose annuitantsinreceiptofabenefitonJuly 1 ofthe precedingyearareeligi-
ble to receive theincrease.

Contributions

Contributions are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. If the scheduled employee and employer
contributions provided in statute, ortherateslastadopted bythe board, areinsufficienttomaintain the amortization
period set in statute, the board shall increase employer contribution rates as necessary.

AfterJune 30,2027, ifthemostrecent annual actuarial valuation of the Systems forfunding purposes shows aratio of
the actuarialvalue of system assets to the actuarial accrued liability ofthe system (the fundedratio) thatis equalto or
greaterthan eighty-five percent, then the board, effective on the following July first, may decrease the then current
contribution rates upon making a finding that the decrease will not result in afunded ratio of less than eighty-five
percent. If contribution rates are decreased pursuant to this provision, and the most recent annual actuarial valuation
of the system shows afundedratio ofless than eighty-five percent, theneffective onthe following Julyfirst,and an-
nually thereafter as necessary, the board shall increase the then current contribution rates until a subsequent annual
actuarial valuation of the system shows a funded ratio that is equal to or greater than eighty-five percent.

The Retirement System Funding and Administration Actestablishes a ceiling onemployee contributionrates at9
percent and 9.75 percent for SCRS and PORS respectively. The employer contribution rates will continue toincrease
annually by 1 percent through July 1, 2022. The legislation’s ultimate scheduled employer rate is 18.56 percent for
SCRS and 21.24 percent for PORS. The amortization period is scheduled to be reduced one year for each of the next
10years to a twenty year amortization period.

Required employee contribution rates' are as follows:

Fiscal Year 2019’ Fiscal Year 2018’
SCRS
Employee Class Two 0.00% 9.00%
Employee Class Three 9.00% 9.00%
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State ORP
Employee 9.00% 9.00%
PORS
Employee Class Two 9.75% 9.75%
Employee Class Three 9.75% 9.75%
Required employer contribution rates' are as follows:

Fiscal Year 2019 Fiscal Year 2018’
SCRS
Employer Class Two 14.41% 13.41%
Employer Class Three 14.41% 13.41%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15%
State ORP
Employer Contribution? 14.41% 13.41%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15%
PORS
Employer Class Two 16.84% 15.84%
Employer Class Three 16.84% 15.84%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.20% 0.20%
Employer Accidental Death
Program 0.20% 0.20%

1 Calculated on earnable compensation as defined in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws.
20fthis employercontribution, 5% ofeamable compensationmustbe remitted by the employerdirectly tothe ORPvendortobe allocatedtothe
member’s account with the remainder of the employer contribution remitted to the SCRS.

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

Actuarialvaluations ofthe plan involve estimates ofthe reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and future
salaryincreases. Amounts determinedregarding the net pensionliability are subjectto continualrevision as actual
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. South Carolina state stat-
ute requires that an actuarial experience study be completed at least once in each five-year period. An experience re-
porton the Systems was most recently issued for the period ending June 30, 2015.

TheJune 30, 2018, total pensionliability (TPL), net pension liability (NPL}, and sensitivity information showninthis
reportwere determinedby our consultingactuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smithand Company (GRS)}and arebasedonan
actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2017. The total pension liability was rolled-forward from the valuation date
to the plans’ fiscal year end, June 30, 2018, using generally accepted actuarial principles.

The following table provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used to calculate the TPL as of June
30,2018,

SCRS PORS
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Entry age normal
Investment rate of return’ 7.25% 7.25%
Projected salary increases 3.0%t0 12.5% (varies by service)' 3.5% to 9.5% (varies by service)'
Benefit adjustments lesser of 1% or $500 annually lesser of 1% or $500 annually
" Includes inflation at 2.25%
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The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member’s job category and gender. The base mortality as-
sumptions, the 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality table (2016 PRSC), was developed using the Systems' mor-
tality experience. These baserates are adjustedfor futureimprovementin mortality using published Scale AA projected
from the year 2016.

Assumptions used in the determination of the June 30, 2018, TPL are as follows.

Former Job Class Males Females

Educators 2016 PRSC Males multiplied by 92% |2016 PRSC Females multiplied by 98%

General Employees and Members ofthe

- o -
General Assembly 2016 PRSCMalesmultipliedby 100% | 2016 PRSC Females multipfied by 111%

Public Safety and Firefighters 2016 PRSCMalesmultipliedby 125% | 2016 PRSC Females multiptied by 111%

Net Pension Liability

TheNPLis calculated separately for each system and represents that particular system’s TPL determinedinaccordance
with GASB No. 67 less that System’s fiduciary net position. NPL totals, as of June 30, 2018, for SCRS and PORS are
presented below.

Total Plan Employers' Plan Fiduciary
Pension Liability Fiduciary Net Po- Net Pension Lia- Net Position as a Percentage of the
System sition bility (Asset) Total Pension Liability
SCRS $ 48,821,730,067 $26,414,916,370 $22,406,813,697 54.1%
PORS 7,403,972 673 4,570,430,247 2,833,542 426 61.7%

The TPL is calculated by the Systems’ actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net position is reported in the Systems' finan-
cial statements. The NPL is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GASB 67 in the Systems’ notes to the fi-
nancial statements and required supplementary information. Liability calculations performed by the Systems’ actu-
ary for the purpose of satisfying the requirements of GASB Nos. 67 and 68 are notapplicable for other purposes,
suchas determining the plans’ funding requirements.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is based upon 30 year capital market assump-
tions. The long-term expected rate of returns represent assumptions developed using an arithmetic building block
approach primarily based on consensus expectations and market based inputs. Expected returns are net of in-
vestmentfees.

Theexpectedreturns, along withthe expectedinflationrate, formthe basisforthe targetassetallocationadopted at
the beginning ofthe 2018 fiscal year. Thelong-termexpectedrate of returnis produced by weighting the expected
futurerealrates of return by the targetallocation percentage and adding expectedinflationandis summarizedinthe
table below. For actuarial purposes, the 7.25 percent assumed annual investment rate of retum used in the calculation
of the TPL includes a 5.00 percent real rate of return and a 2.25 percent inflation component.
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Expected Long Term Expected

n Target Asset Arithmetic Real Portfolio Real Rate of

Asset Class Allocation __Rate of Return Return
Global Equity 47.0%

l Global Public Equity 3B.0% 6.99% 2.31%
Private Equity 9.0% 8.73% 0.79%
Equity Options Strategies 50% 5.52% 0.25%

I Real Assets 10.0%

Real Estate (Private) 6.0% 3.54% 0.21%
Real Estate (REITs) 2.0% 5.46% 0.11%

| Infrastructure 20% 5.09% 0.10%

i Opportunistic 13.0%

. GTAA/RIsk Parity 8.0% 3.75% 0.30%
Hedge Funds {non-PA}) 20% 3.45% 0.07%

4 Other Opportunistic Strategies 3.0% 3.75% 0.11%
Diversified Credit 18.0%

Il Mixed Credit 6.0% 3.05% 0.18%

“4 Emerging Markets Debt 50% 3.94% 0.20%
Private Debt 7.0% 3.89% 0.27%

[ Conservative Fixed Income 12.0%

Core Fixed Income 10.0% 0.94% 0.09%
Cash and Short Duration (Net) 20% 0.34% 0.01%

[ Total Expected Return 100% 5.03%
inflation for Actuarial Purposes 2.25%

— TotalExpected Nominal Return 7.28%

Discount Rate

-

Thediscountrate usedtomeasurethe TPLwas 7.25 percent. The projection of cash flows usedto determine the
discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers in SCRS and PORS will be made based onthe

- actuarially determined rates based on provisions inthe South Carolina Code of Laws. Based on those assumptions, the
System’sfiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all the projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
- periods of projected benefit payments to determine the TPL.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table presents the collective NPL of the participating employers calculated using the discountrate of 7.25
percent,as wellas whatthe employers’ NPL would be ifitwere calculated using adiscountrate thatis 1.00 percent
lower (6.25 percent) or 1.00 percent higher (8.25 percent) than the current rate.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate | 1.00% Increase
System (6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
SCRS $28,631,746,951 $22,406,813,697 $17,956,582,707
PORS 3,819,969,291 2,833,542,426 2,025,575,990

Additional Financial and Actuarial Information

Detailed information regarding the fiduciary net position of the plans administered by PEBA is available in the
Systems’ audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 (including the unmedified audit opinion
on the financial statements). Additional actuarial information is available in the accounting and financial reporting ac-

44

G I B e B e



R 0l I A & D B &

Gl N B

tuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018.

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience
At March 31, 2019, the Town reported liabilities of approximately $1,425,089 and $883,677 for its proportionate

share of the net pension liability for the SCRS and PORS (“Plans”) respectively. The net pension liabilities were
measured as of June 30, 2018

Payable to the Pension Plan
At March 31, 2019, the Town reported a payable of $20,478 for the regular monthly outstanding amount of contri-
butions to the pension plan required for the year ended March 31, 2019.

Other post-employment benefits plan:

Plan description
Beginning in fiscal year 2010, the Town implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) State-

ment No. 45 prospectively for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) offered to retirees. This standard ad-
dresses how local governments should account for and report their costs related to post-employment healthcare.
The funding methodology mirrors the funding approach used for pension benefits.

The Town provides post-retirement health benefits, as per the requirement of a local ordinance, for certain retir-
ees and their dependents. The Town of Blacksburg OPEB Plan (plan) is approved each year by Town Council.
The plan is a single member defined benefit OPEB plan administered internally by the Town. Information about
the plan is included in the Town’s entity-wide financial statements. Participants must be eligible to retire under the
South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS or PORS) to receive the benefits upon retirement. In addition, the re-
tiree must meet one of the following criteria:

1. Age 59% - 65
2. 28 years’ service with the Town

The Town provides the following option to its retirees:

Retirees can elect to stay on the Town's group insurance plan and pay all costs. This allows retirees to cover a
spouse. The cost of coverage for pre-65 retirees is implicitly subsidized by the Town.

The plan does not include a disability benefit.

The plan does not include a special pre-retirement death benefit.
The plan does not include a special withdrawal benefit.

Service is determined from date of hire.

Retirees pay 100 percent of the health insurance premiums. The Town's regular health insurance providers un-
derwrite the retiree’s policies.

2. _Funding policy:

As of March 31, 2019, there were 29 participants in the plan eligible to receive future benefits, of which there were
28 members in active service. The Town currently finances the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. For the year
ended March 31, 2019, Town recognized pay-as-you-go expenses of $0 for healthcare net of retiree contributions
in the current and all prior years.

Total OPEB Liability: In previous years, the Town has reported a net OPEB obligation (liability) consisting of

the difference between the annual required contribution into the plan and the actual contributions made by the

Town. New reporting standards (GASB 75) require employers to determine the total OPEB liability using the

entry age normal actuarial funding method and to report a net OPEB liability consisting of the difference be-
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tween the total OPEB liability and the plan’s fiduciary net position.

Total OPEB Liability March 31 2018 restated 2019
Total OPEB liability $ 334,027 $
373,234
Covered payroll 1,072,572 1,145,51
6
Total OPEB liability as a % of covered payroll 31.23% 32.58%

The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of March 31, 2019, the valuation date,
calculated batsgdton the discount rate and actuarial assumptions below, and was then projected forward to the
measurement date.

Discount Rate

Discount rate March 31 2018/2019 3.61% 3.42%
20 Year Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Yield March 31 2018/19 3.61% 3.42%

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Index.
Other Key Actuarial Assumptions

The plan has not had a formal actuarial experience study performed

Valuation date March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019
Measurement date March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Entry age normal
Medical Trend Rate 6.0% over 10 years 6.0% over 10 years
Salary increases including inflation 1.00% 1.00%

Actuarial methods and assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as under-
stood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between employer and plan members to that
point. The actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future. The actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revisions
as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about future events and
costs. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects
of short-term volatility in actuariai accrued liabilities and the value of assets, consistent with the long- term per-
spective of the calculations.

Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Increase (Decrease) Total OPEB Liability

Balance as of March 31, 2018, as previously reported $ 334,927
Restatement adjustment in accordance with GASB 75 13,229
Balance as of March 31, 2018, as restated $ 348,156
Changes for the year

Service cost 30,454
Interest on total OPEB liability 13,668
Effect of plan changes -
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses (29,082)
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs 10,038
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Benefit payments_ ( -)
Balance as of March 31, 2019 $ 373234
Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Town, calculated using the discount rate of 3.42%, as well
as what the Town's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage
point lower (2.42%) or 1 percentage point higher (4.42%) than the current rate.

Total OPEB Liability

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

2.42% 4.42%
3.42%

$432,057 $373,234 $323,491

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Town, calculated using the current healthcare cost trend
rates as well as what the Town's totaled OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using trend rates that are
1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current trend rates.

Total OPEB Liability

Current
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
$330,075 $373,234 $425,089

The calculation of OPEB Expense for the year ended March 31, 2019 is as follows:

OPEB Expense
April 1, 2018 to
March 31, 2019

Service cost $ 30454
Interest on total OPEB liability 13,668
Effect of plan changes -
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses (29,082)
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs 10,038
Benefit payments_ { -)
OPEB Expense $ 25078

As of March 31, 2019, the deferred inflows and outflows of resources are as follows:

Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows

Of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - 5 -
Changes in assumptions - -
Total $ - $ -
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Amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to other
postemployment

Year ended March 31:

2019 -
2020 -
2021 -
2022 -
2023 -
Thereafter* -

* Note that additional future deferred inflows and outflows of resources may impact these numbers.

* Economic/demographic (gains)losses and assumption changes orinputs are recognized overthe average
remaining service life for all active and inactive members.

Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Fiscal Year Ending
March 31, 2019

Total CPEB Liability

Service cost $30,454
interest on total OPEB liability 13,668
Effect of plan changes -
Effect of economic/demographic gains or (losses) -
Effect of assumption changes or inputs (29,082)

Benefit payments 10,038
Net change in total OPEB liability $25.078
Covered payroll $1,145,516
Total OPEB liability as a % covered payroll 32.58%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, recalcula-
tions of prior years are not required, and if prior years are not reported in accordance with the current GASB
standards, they should not be reported.

F. LONG-TERM WATER CONTRACT:

On August 24, 2011, the Town of Blacksburg negotiated a twenty (20) year contract with the Board of Public
Works of Gaffney, South Carolina, to purchase water. The total water purchases for the fiscal year 2019 were
$310,362.

G. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS:

During the course of normal operations, the Town has various transactions between funds, including expendi-
tures and transfers of resources to provide services.

H. CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL AND GRANTS:

During the fiscal year the Town had several projects designed to upgrade, relocate and extend water and sewer
lines. These projects are generally funded by Federal grants, State grants, and community contributions.
Amounts contributed to the Town during the year include the following:
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Community Development Block Grant/ARC Sewer Improvements $260,942
Cherokee County School District SRO Officer, Vehicle Reimbursement, & Crossing Guard $110,991

The Town participates in the State of South Carolina Local Option Sales Tax program in which it receives a por-
tion of the sales tax funds collected by the state. Funds received from the State are allocated between a general
revenue account and a property tax credit fund account. Funds deposited in the property tax credit fund account
in excess of the amount provided for property tax relief in the current year are recorded as a liability and must be
applied as a credit against property tax bills in the following year. When calculating the next fiscal year's tax
credit factor, the Town must consider any surplus funds in the property tax credit fund account when projecting
future collections.

I. TAX ABATEMENTS:

The Town was subject to no tax abatements that affected revenues for fiscal year 2019.

J.  PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT — RESTATEMENT:

Change in Accounting Principle

The Town implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2019. The
implementation of the statement required the Town to record beginning total OPEB liability and the effects on
net position of benefit payments and administrative expenses paid by the Town related to OPEB during the
measurement period. The impact of the change is to increase net position of the governmental activities at April
1, 2018 by $10,030, and to decrease net position of the enterprise fund/business-type activities by $23,259.
The reporting change had no effect on current year operations of the Town’'s governmental-type funds in the
“fund financial statements”.
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Town of Blacksburg

Schedule Of Changes In Total OPEB Liability And Related Ratios

March 31, 2019

Total OPEB Liability

Service costs

Interest on total OPEB liability

Effect of plan changes

Effect of economic/demographic gains or (losses)
Effect of assumption changes or inputs

Benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB liability
Covered payroll

Total OPEB liability as a % covered payroll 32.58%

See accompanying notes to OPEB required supplementary information.
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Town of Blacksburg, South Carolina
SCHEDULE OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS AND
FUNDING STATUS
For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2019

The following is a schedule of annual OPEB costs, employer contributions, and funding status for Other
Postemployment Benefits This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10
years. However, recalculations of prior years are not required, and if prior years are not reported in accord-
ance with the current GASB standards, they should not be reported.

Costs Funded
Annual OPEB Cost Contributed Percentage
March 31, 2019 $ 25,078 $0 0%

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Blacksburg, SC
Notes To OPEB Required Supplementary Information
For The Year Ended March 31,2019

Method and Assumptions Used in Calculations of Actuarially Determined Contributions: The actuarially deter-
mined contribution rates in the schedule of contributions are calculated as of March 31, 2018, one year prior to
the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported. The actuarial methods and assumptions used to
determine the contractually required contributions for the year ended March 31, 2019 reported in that schedule
can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements.
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Town of Blacksburg
Schedule of the Town'’s Contributions to the Pension Plan
As of March 31, 2019

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

SCRS

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of pay

Asset valuation method 30 year capital market assumptions

Inflation 2.25%

Salary increases 3.0% to 12.5% (varies by service)

Benefit adjustments Lesser of 1% or $500 annually

investment rate of return 7.25%

Retirement age 55 years old with 25 years of service

Mortality 2016 PRSC Male/Female Tables multiplied by
100%/111%respectively

PORS

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of pay

Asset valuation method 30 year capital market assumptions

Inflation 2.25%

Salary increases 3.5% to 9.5% (varies by service)

Benefit adjustments Lesser of 1% or $500 annually

Investment rate of return 7.25%

Retirement age 55 years old with 27 years of service

Mortality 2016 PRSC Male/Female Tables multiplied by

125%/111%respectively

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Blacksburg, SC
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
March 31, 2019

Victim's
Narcotics Rights Total Nonmajor
Museum Seizure Advocate Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11421 § 14,563 § 13171 % 39,155
Total assets 3 11,421 $ 145663 § 13,171 $ 39,155
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - % - & - % -
Due toffrom other funds 5 - - N
Total liabilities - - - -
Fund Balances:
Restricted for -
Drug enforcement - 14,563 - 14,563
Victims assistance - - 13,171 13,171
Assigned for museum maintenance & park 11,421 - & 11,421
Total fund balances 11,421 14,563 13,171 39,155
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 11,421 % 14563 § 13171 § 39,155
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement, 58
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Town of Blacksburg, SC
Combining Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended March 31, 2019

Victim's
Narcotics Rights Total Nonmajor
Museum Seizure Advocate Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES
Taxes $ - % - % . $ R
Fines and forfeitures - 6,419 4,009 10,428
Property saies 10,000 - 5 10,000
Total revenues ' 10,000 6,419 4,009 20,428
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government - S : -

Police department - 9,257 13,151 22,408
Capital outlay:

General government = = : R

Police department - 18,300 - 18,300

Debt service:
Principal - = - -
interest 5 - - -
Total Expendifures - 27,557 13,151 40,708

Excess (deficiency)of revenues over
(under) expenditures before other sources

& (uses) 10,000 (21,138) (9.142) (20,280)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & USES - - 5 3

Net change in fund balances 10,000 (21,138} {9,142) (20,280}

Fund balances - beginning 1421 35,701 22,313 59,435

Fund balances - ending $ 11,421 $ 14563 % 13171 % 39,155
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 59
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Town of Blacksburg, South Carolina
Statement of Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds
Fiduciary Funds

March 31, 2019
Police Seizure
Agency Fund
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 39,573
Total current assets 39,573
Total assets $ 39,573
LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 39,573
Total current liabilities 39,573
Total liabilities $ 39,573
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 60
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TOWN OF BLACKSBURG
SCHEDULE OF FINES AND ASSESSMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Court Fines:

Court fines collected $ 16,181
Court fines retained by the Town (16,181)
Court Fines Remitted to the State Treasurer $ -0

Court Assessments & Surcharges

Court assessments & surcharges collected $ 32,583
Court assessments & surcharges retained by the Town (417"

Court Assessments & Surcharges Remitted to the

State Treasurer $ 28412

Victim Assistance Fund Activity (Cash Basis)

Carryforward of Victim Assistance Fund balance from prior year $ 22,313
Revenues:
Transfers from General Fund during the year based of funds

received from the Magistrate’s Office (cash basis) 4,009
General fund reimbursements for prior year expenditures 867

Expenditures:

Victim assistant services expenditures — operating expenditures (14,018)
Funds Available for Carryforward $ 13171

*Note:  The Court Assessments & Surcharges amount shown above is based on a summary
of the monthly reports sent to the State Treasurer (accrual basis); however, the
amount shown above for revenue transfers from the General Fund to the
Victims Assistance Fund is reported on the cash flow basis resulting in a one month
timing difference.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TERRY R. FANT. PA

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
309 WEST MAIN STREET
UNION, SOUTH CAROLINA 29379

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Town Council
Town of Blacksburg, SC

| have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental ac-
tivities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Blacksburg, SC, as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019, and the related notes to the finan-
cial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Blacksburg, SC's basic financial statements and
have issued my report thereon dated June 18, 2019,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, | considered the Town of Blacksburg,
SC's internal control over financial reporting {internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Blacksburg, SC's
internal control. Accordingly, | do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Blacksburg,
SC's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow manage-
ment or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of defi-
ciencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A signifi-
cant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than
a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weak-
nesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist
that were not identified. Given these limitations, during my audit | did not identify any deficiencies in in-
ternal control that | consider to be material weaknesses. | did identify certain deficiencies in internal con-
trol, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses that | consider to be significant
deficiencies (See 2019.1).

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Blacksburg, SC's financial state-
ments are free from material misstatement, | performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, | do not express such
an opinion.
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TOWN OF BLACKSBURG
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Sianificant Control Deficiencies:

Finding 2019-1 Ineffective oversight of the entity’s financial reporting and internal con-
trol by those charged with governance.,

The auditor drafted the financial statements, including footnote disclosure, due to the fact that
the Town of Blacksburg does not have the ability to independently prepare or review financial
statements and related footnote disclosures. As such, there were no controls in place to detect
misstatements in this area.

Recommendation — Just as most other small governments, the Town of Blacksburg considers it
to be cost prohibitive to hire a full-time finance director with the training and experience neces-
sary to be able to prepare and understand financial statements. To strengthen control, the
Town should appoint someone on staff to begin developing the skills needed to provide over-
sight in this area.

Corrective Action - Management has appointed the Town Administrator to perform a detailed
review of the draft financial statements with the auditor in an effort to begin developing a level of
understanding necessary to assume responsibility for financial statement preparation and to
prevent and detect misstatements.

Conclusion - Response accepted

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



